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PLEASE NOTE 
 
 
This paperless packet is published on the County’s website for 
convenience purposes, and only includes information received up to 
the close of business on the day before a public hearing.  Documents 
received after this, or documents submitted during the public hearing 
are not uploaded to the Paperless Packet.  The legal record is the 
paper record maintained in the Offices of the Planning & Zoning 
Department. 
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PLANNING AND ZONING AND COUNTY COUNCIL INFORMATION SHEET 
Planning Commission Public Hearing Date: August 25th, 2022 

 
Application: C/Z 1963 ES Motors, Inc.  
 
Applicant:  ES Motors Inc. 
   30028 Vines Creek 
   Dagsboro, DE 19939 
 
Owner:  ES Motors Inc. 
   30028 Vines Creek 
   Dagsboro, DE 19939 
 
Site Location:  Lying on the south side of Vines Creek Road (Rt. 26), approximately 0.5 

miles east of Armory Road (Rt. 382). 
 
Current Zoning: MR – Medium Residential District  
 
Proposed Zoning:  C-2 – Medium Commercial District  
 
Comprehensive Land  
Use Plan Reference:   Coastal Area 
 
Councilmanic 
District:  Mr. Hudson 
 
School District: Indian River School District 
 
Fire District:  Dagsboro Fire Company  
 
Sewer:   On-site 
 
Water:    On-site 
 
Site Area:   9.54 acres +/- 
 
Tax Map ID.:   233-11.00-172.00 
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Memorandum 
To: Sussex County Planning Commission Members  
From: Mx. Jesse Lindenberg, Planner I    
CC: Mr. Vince Robertson, Assistant County Attorney, and applicant  
Date: August 18th, 2022 
RE: Staff Analysis for C/Z 1963 ES Motors, Inc.  
 
This memo is to provide background and analysis for the Planning Commission to consider as a 
part of application C/Z 1963 ES Motors, Inc. to be reviewed during the August 25 th, 2022, Planning 
Commission Meeting. This analysis should be included in the record of this application and is 
subject to comments and information that may be presented during the public hearing.  
 
The request is for a Change of Zone for Tax Parcel 233-11.00-172.00 to allow for a change of zone 
from a Medium Residential (MR) District to a Medium Commercial (C-2) District. The property is 
lying on the south side of Vines Creek Road (Rt. 26), approximately 0.5 miles east of Armory Road 
(Rt. 382). The parcel consists of 9.54 acres +/-.  
 
Comprehensive Plan Analysis 
 
The 2018 Sussex County Comprehensive Plan Update (Comprehensive Plan) provides a 
framework of how land is to be developed. As part of the Comprehensive Plan, a Future Land Use 
Map is included to help determine how land should be zoned to ensure responsible development.  
The Future Land Use map in the plan indicates that the subject property has land use designation 
of “Coastal Area.” The properties to the north (across Vines Creek Road), south, east, and west all 
have a land use designation of “Coastal Area.” 
 
As outlined in the 2018 Sussex County Comprehensive Plan, Coastal Areas are areas that can 
accommodate development provided that special environmental concerns are addressed. A range 
of housing types should be permitted in Coastal Areas, including single-family homes, townhouses, 
and multi-family units. Retail and office uses are appropriate, but larger shopping centers and office 
parks should be confined to selected locations with access along arterial roads. Appropriate mixed-
use development should all be allowed. In doing so, careful mixtures of homes with light 
commercial, office and institutional uses can be appropriate to provide for convenient services and 
to allow people to work close to home. Major new industrial uses are not proposed in these areas. 
(Sussex County Comprehensive Plan, 4-15). 
 
The 2018 Sussex County Comprehensive Plan outlines Zoning Districts by their applicability to 
each Future Land Use category. Under Table 4.5-2 “Zoning Districts Applicable to Future Land 
Use Categories”, the Medium Commercial (C-2) District is listed as an Applicable Zoning District 
within the “Coastal Area” (Sussex County Comprehensive Plan, 4-25). 
  



 
 
Staff Analysis 
C/Z 1963 ES Motors, Inc.  
Planning and Zoning Commission for August 25th, 2022 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 

 

 
Zoning Information 
 
The property is zoned Medium Residential (MR) District. The adjacent parcels to the northwest 
(across Vines Creek Road), south, east, and west of the subject property are zoned Agricultural 
Residential (AR-1) District. The property located to the northeast of the subject site, across Vines 
Creek Road, is zoned Commercial Residential (CR-1) District. A few parcels west of the site are 
the municipal boundaries of the Town of Dagsboro. 
 
Existing Change of Zone Applications within the Vicinity of the Subject Site 
 
Since 2011, there have been zero (0) Change of Zone applications within a one (1) mile radius of 
the application site. 
 
Based on this analysis, a Change of Zone from a Medium Residential (MR) District to a Medium 
Commercial (C-2) District could be considered as being consistent with the land use, area zoning 
and surrounding uses. 
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            November 15, 2021 
 
Mr. Jamie Whitehouse, Director 
Sussex County Planning & Zoning  
P.O. Box 417 
Georgetown, DE  19947 
 
Dear Mr. Whitehouse:   
 

The Department has completed its review of a Service Level Evaluation Request for the 
ES Motors Inc c/o Tim Willard proposed land use application, which we received on November 
3, 2021. This application is for an approximately 9.54-acre parcel (Tax Parcel: 233-11.00-172.00). 
The subject land is located on the south side of Vines Creek Road (State Route 26) about 2,400 
feet east of the intersection with Armory Road (State Route 20). The subject land is currently zoned 
MR (Medium Density Residential) with a proposed zoning of C-2 (Medium Commercial) to build 
office and storage space. 

 
Per the 2019 Delaware Vehicle Volume Summary, the annual and summer average daily 

traffic volumes along Vines Creek Road from Falling Point Road (Sussex Road 341) to Stone 
Lane, are 9,817 and 12,623 vehicles per day, respectively.  

 
Based on our review, we estimate that the above land use will generate fewer than 50 

vehicle trips per day.  This number of trips is below DelDOT’s minimum warrants for determining 
that a Traffic Impact Study (TIS) should be required for a particular development. DelDOT’s 
regulations specify the minimum TIS warrants as 50 vehicle trips in any hour and/or 500 vehicle 
trips per day.  Because the proposed land use would generate fewer than 50 vehicle trips per day, 
we consider the development’s traffic impact to be diminutive in the context of our agreement 
with the County regarding land development coordination and we do not recommend that the 
applicant be required to perform a TIS for the subject application. DelDOT’s description of this 
application as diminutive with regard to warranting a TIS does not mean that it is diminutive in 
other respects. We recommend that the applicant not be required to perform a TIS for the subject 
application. 

 
If the County approves this application, the applicant should be reminded that DelDOT 

requires compliance with State regulations regarding plan approvals and entrance permits, whether 
or not a TIS is required. 



Mr. Jamie Whitehouse  
Page 2 of 2 
November 15, 2021 

 
Please contact Ms. Annamaria Furmato, at (302) 760-2710, if you have questions 

concerning this correspondence.  
 
 

Sincerely, 

 
T. William Brockenbrough, Jr. 
County Coordinator 
Development Coordination 
 

 
 

TWB:afm 
cc:  Tim Willard, Applicant  
 Elliot Young, Sussex County Planning & Zoning 
 David Edgell, Coordinator, Cabinet Committee on State Planning Issues 
 Todd Sammons, Assistant Director, Development Coordination 
 Scott Rust, South District Public Works Manager, Maintenance & Operations 
 Steve McCabe, Sussex County Review Coordinator, Development Coordination 

Derek Sapp, Subdivision Manager, Development Coordination 
Kevin Hickman, Subdivision Manager, Development Coordination 
Brian Yates, Subdivision Manager, Development Coordination 
John Andrescavage, Subdivision Manager, Development Coordination 

 James Argo, South District Project Reviewer, Maintenance & Operations 
Claudy Joinville, Project Engineer, Development Coordination  
Annamaria Furmato, Project Engineer, Development Coordination 
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Jesse Lindenberg

From: Morris, Dorothy (OMB) <Dorothy.Morris@delaware.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, July 27, 2022 9:42 AM
To: Jesse Lindenberg
Subject: RE: PLUS Review for CZ 1963 ES Motors, Inc.

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links, open attachments, or reply unless you recognize 
the sender and know the content is safe. Contact the IT Helpdesk if you need assistance. 
This is in the coastal area and according to your email they are want to change zoning consistent with the 
comprehensive plan.  This is also in a Level 2 area so unless you specifically want them to come through PLUS the 
rezoning does not need a PLUS meeting; however the development may depending on the size.  
 
Thanks  

 

Dorothy L Morris, AICP  
Principal Planner  
Office of State Planning Coordination  

Office: (302) 672-5136  Email: Dorothy.morris@delaware.gov  

 

stateplanning.delaware.gov  122 Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd. South, Dover, DE 19901  
 
 

 
 
Visit de.gov/plus for more information  
 

From: Jesse Lindenberg <jesse.lindenberg@sussexcountyde.gov>  
Sent: Tuesday, July 26, 2022 4:24 PM 
To: Morris, Dorothy (OMB) <Dorothy.Morris@delaware.gov> 
Subject: PLUS Review for CZ 1963 ES Motors, Inc.  
 
Good afternoon,  
 
We have a Change of Zone application (CZ 1963 ES Motors, Inc.) for a change of zone from MR to C-2 for parcel 233-
11.00-172.00. Please see the application attached. Will this application require a PLUS review? We were looking to run 
legal ads tomorrow and are hoping to have a determination as soon as possible. My apologies for the rush.  
 
Thank you,  

Jesse Lindenberg (they/he)  
Planner I  
Sussex County Government  
Planning & Zoning Dept.  
2 The Circle, PO Box 417  
Georgetown, DE 19947  
P: 302-855-7878  
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* There is a new fee schedule for FY2023. Please contact the office with any questions. *  
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